SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 10, 2013
2:18 p.m

2:18: 50 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Meyer called the Senate Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 2:18 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair

Senat or Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Rena Del bridge, Staff, Representative Mke Hawker; Frank
Ri chards, Manager, Pipeline Engineering, Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Cor por ati on; Representati ve M ke Hawker ;
Representative M ke Chenaul t

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Ken Vassar, General Counsel, AGC, Joe Dubler, Vice
President and Chief Financial Oficer, Al aska Gasline
Devel opnment Corporation and Director of Finance, Al aska
Housi ng Fi nance Corporation, Departnent of Revenue
SUMVARY
SB 13 KNI K ARM BRI DGE AND TOLL AUTHORI TY

SB 13 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

CS HB 4(FIN) ALASKA GASLI NE DEVELOPMENT CORP; RCA



CS HB 4(FIN was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for
further consideration.

#HB 4
CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 4(FIN)

"An Act relating to the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent
Cor por ati on; est abl i shi ng t he Al aska Gasl i ne
Devel opnent  Corporation as an independent public
corporation of the state; establishing and relating to
the in-state natural gas pipeline fund; nmaking certain
information provided to or by the Alaska Gsline
Devel opnent Corporation and its subsidiaries exenpt
from inspection as a public record; relating to the
Joint In-State Gasline Devel opnent Team relating to
the Al aska Housing Finance Corporation; relating to
judicial review of a right-of-way |ease or an action
or decision related to the devel opnment or construction
of an oil or gas pipeline on state land; relating to
the lease of a right-of-way for a gas pipeline
transportation corridor, including a corridor for a
natural gas pipeline that is a contract carrier;

relating to the cost of natural resources, permts,

and | eases provided to the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation; relating to procurenent by the Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent  Corporation; relating to the
review by the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska of
natural gas transportation contracts; relating to the
regul ation by the Regulatory Conmm ssion of Al aska of
an in-state natural gas pipeline project devel oped by
the Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation; relating
to the regulation by the Regulatory Conm ssion of
Alaska of an in-state natural gas pipeline that
provi des transportation by contract carri age;

repealing the statutes relating to the Al aska Natura

Gas Development Authority and making conform ng
changes; exenpting property of a project devel oped by
the Alaska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation from
property taxes before the comencenent of commercial

operations; and providing for an effective date."

2:20: 19 PM

Co-Chair Meyer welconmed guests from a charter school in
Pal mer, Al aska to the conmttee room

2:20: 47 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



Senator Dunleavy clarified that the guests hailed from
Acadeny Charter School in Palner, Al aska. He added that the
students and staff made an annual trip to the capitol in an
effort to give students a closer |ook at the inner-workings
of state governnent.

2:22:04 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the bill under discussion could
provi de the students with affordable energy in the future.

2:22:47 PM

FRANK Rl CHARDS, MANAGER, Pl PELI NE ENG NEERI NG, ALASKA
GASLI NE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, referred to the previous
day's discussion by WIIliam Wal ker and Craig Richards of
Wal ker Richards LLC titled, "Gty of Valdez Presentation on
the In-State Gas Pipeline Bill"(copy on file). The
presentation had provided one perspective of the cost
estimate for HB 4. He reviewed that HB 369 had been a
| egislative action offered in 2010 that had created the
Al aska Gasline Devel opnment Corporation (AGDC) in order to
advance the in-state natural gas pipeline and would bring
natural gas from the North Slope to Fairbanks and South-
Central Alaska. He said with funding from the |egislature
under HB 369, AGDC hired experts in the necessary fields in
order to advance the project design from a concept to
witten plan. He shared that the nethodology used in
crafting the plan was created by the Association for the
Advancenent of Cost Engineering (AACE), which set out
met hodol ogy for process engineering that was used industry-
wi de. He explained that follow ng the process of AACE, AGDC
had developed a <cost estimate for the project. He
highlighted that at that tinme the project had focused on a
"rich-gas", 24 inch, high-pressure pipeline. He stated that
a cost estimate of $7.5 billion, plus or mnus 30 percent,
had been determ ned based of the Ilevel of engineering
avai lable at the tinme. He furthered that contingencies had
been built into the estimate because the engineering had
yet to be advanced far enough in order to determne a
conclusive cost estinmate. He relayed that AGDC had
considered plus or mnus 30 percent for the facility; 5
percent for the pipeline.

V. Ri char ds conti nued t hat in 2012, whil e t he

environnmental inpact statenent (EIS) was being conpleted,
AGDC updated the project plan. He stated that the update

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



shifted the project froma "rich gas" case to a "lean gas"
case. After revisiting costs and examning the process
using the AACE net hodol ogy, AGDC increased the contingency
for the pipeline fromb5 percent to 10 percent and left the
30 percent contingency on facilities. The cost estimate in
2012 was approximately $7.7 billion. He noted the increase
of approximately $200 million was due to the inflation
factors associated with the facilities. The revised project
plan reflected a $7.7 billion cost estimate along with the
maj or features of the gas conditioning conpressor station,
the pipeline route from the North Slope to Dunbar, a
|ateral to Fairbanks, and again from Dunbar down to Cook
Inlet. He stressed that the new project plan had been
crafted under i ndustry  standards and practices by
engi neering conpanies used by both AGC and G| and Gas
producers in the state. He stated that the aforenentioned
engi neering conpani es were Al aska based, wth experience on
the North Slope, and had been conducting nmajor process and
pi peline work across the state for decades. He stated that
the project had been given a class four estimate based on
the AACE nethodology. He believed that as the work
advanced, refined engineering would result in the state
hol di ng an open season with a class three estinate.

2:28: 03 PM

Senator Bishop understood that all parties involved were
working to keep the cost of the pipeline as close to the
estimated projections as possible.

M. Richards replied in the affirmative.

Senator Bishop surm sed that conpleting the project for the
estimated cost would ensure |lower overall tariff and tol
cost .

M. Richards replied that |ower total installation costs
would result in a lower tariff.

Senat or Bi shop spoke of natural gas projects in other areas
of the world that had doubled in cost while under
construction. He urged AGC to keep all options open when
executing contracts and to carefully consider the use of
mul tiple project |abor agreenents as a way of controlling
proj ect costs.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



M. Richards replied that the major factor for the tariff
woul d be the total cost for the project. He said that AGDC
would work diligently to get through an open season in
order to identify for potential shippers and buyers what
the costs will be. He stressed that AGDC would use all of
the tools available to advance the project. He added that
the labor, materials, process and plant costs would be
consi derable, and that AGDC would do everything it could do
to keep the costs down.

2:30: 11 PM

Senator Bishop hoped that a project |abor agreenment woul d
be part of the equation.

M. Richards replied that project |abor agreenments would be
reviewed as they becane avail able. He stressed that as the
corporation noved through an open season, and | ooked toward
an ownership nodel, project |abor agreenments would be
consi dered one of the tools that would be used when working
with project partners.

2:30: 37 PM

Senator Bishop remarked that that it would be unfortunate
for the project to cone in at twice the estinmated cost;
however he warned that the scope of tools necessary to nmake
the project successful should not be limted in an effort
to come in under budget.

2:31: 06 PM

Senator O son referred to the previous day's testinony
(4/09/13). He understood that wupon conpletion of the
project the only entities that would be putting gas into
the pipeline would be ConocoPhillips, Exxon Mbil and
British Petrol eum

M. Richards replied he was not the expert concerning
ownership of the Prudhoe Bay units; however, the shippers
of the gas would be the entities that had gas avail able on
the North Slope. He deferred further comment to the
Depart ment of Natural Resources.

Senator O son expressed concern that the QI and Gas
conpany, Shell, would not be able to put gas in the line if

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



the three aforenentioned entities put gas into the Iline
first.

RENA  DELBRI DGE, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER
interjected that anyone that had gas could participate. She

admtted t hat Exxon Mobi |, British Petrol eum and
ConocoPhillips presently had gas in the Prudhoe Bay unit
and were using it for greater recovery of oil; nost oil

found on the slope had gas associated with it. She |isted
the conpanies currently exploring in the area that could
participate in the project if they had gas to nove off of
the slope. She stated that the only limtation that existed
was whether or not the pipeline was able to expand in the
future under the Al aska Gasline Inducenent Act (AdA). She
hypot hesi zed that when Shell was ready and the state was no
| onger bound by AG A the pipeline could expand under
comercially reasonabl e terns.

2: 34: 38 PM

Senator (O son gathered that there would be room in the
pi peline for Shell gas if Shell found commercially viable
gas during off-shore expl oration.

Ms. Delbridge replied that provided that there was no
violation of AGA there would be an expansion of the
pi peline to support the additional gas.

Senator O son asked if Shell would be accommobdated under
the sane rates as the other producers.

Ms. Del bridge said that the cost of the expansion would be
paid for by the person wanting the expansion. She deferred
to AGDC for further explanation.

2: 35: 37 PM

Co-Chair Meyer wunderstood that there were currently six
producers exploring on the North Sl ope.

2:36: 02 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered about the potential gas in Nenana
that coul d possibly be put in the pipeline.

Ms. Del bridge responded that Nenana was beneath the 68th
parallel and mght not be subject to capacity constraints

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



under AJ A, it was possible to add additional capacity to a
pipeline to bring gas from Nenana to mnarket.

2:36:32 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough requested the explanation of any
acronynms used during the discussion. She noted for visiting
students in the gallery that the commttee was discussing
whether it was best for the state to nove forward with a
smal ler pipeline, or should the state wait until a bigger
line could be built. She requested a discussion on access;
specifically, language in the bill pertaining to conmon
carriers versus the contract carriers. She voi ced concern
that the three corporations that currently had oil in the
Trans- Al aska Pipeline (TAPS) would control interest in a
gas pi peline.

Ms. Del bridge addressed the allegation nade during the
Val dez presentation that suggested that HB 4 violated the
terms of AGQ A because of design capacity. She asserted that
the ultimate finding of the legal opinion cited in the
Val dez presentation stated that the specific |anguage of
AG A required the state to limt support of other projects
design capacity. She contended that AGDC had been careful
to design a project that was not in violation of AJA She
stressed that the Departnment of Law (DOL), Legislative
Legal and attorneys for AGDC had reviewed the opinion
| anguage to ensure AG A was not violated. She added that
the state believed that TransCanada was in conpliance wth
its license and had made no allegation to the contrary.

2:40: 28 PM

KEN VASSAR, GENERAL COUNSEL, AGDC (via teleconference),
testified that there was nothing witten in HB 4 that
violated the ternms of AGQA He furthered that the
corporation would conply wth AGA until AG A was
officially no longer in effect.

2:42:17 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered how the project would nopve
forward under another |eader, rather than AGC. She queried
how the admnistration wuld handle outside parties
inquiring of TransCanada whether the state was in violation
of AG A

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



Ms. Delbridge replied that if the state were conpliant it
woul d nmake it unnecessary for other parties to question
TransCanada. She believed that state conm ssioners and
TransCanada would determ ne whether the state was
conpl i ant.

2:44:11 PM

M. Richards furthered that the governor had been clear in
stating that AGDC was to work cooperatively wth
TransCanada, the Alaska Pipeline Project and the South
Central Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG Project. He said that
di scussions with those conpanies were ongoing. He noted
that the specifics of the dialogue were not entirely
transparent due to issues of confidentiality, but that the
corporation was working cooperatively with those entities.

2:44:33 PM

Senator Dunleavy asked if AGA |limted the size of the
pi pe, or the volume noving through the pipe.

Ms. Delbridge read the definition of a conpeting natural
gas pipeline project, per AGA:

"A project designed to accommobdate throughput of nore
than half a billion cubic feet a day of North Slope
gas to market."

Ms. Delbridge relayed that the design and the gas running
t hrough the pipe were not nutual ly excl usive.

2:48: 11 PM

Senat or Dunl eavy queried whether the size of the pipe would
dictate if the state was in violation under AG A

Ms. Del bridge replied that the AQQA statute clearly stated
"a pipeline project” and referred to the actual pipe plus
the facilities related to that pipe.

M. R chards elaborated that when AGDC |ooked at the
nodi fications to the project design, a trade-off between

pi pe dianeter, pressure, conpr essi on, and processing
ability were all examned. He reiterated that the ceiling
for the project was 500 mllion cubic feet per day flow

t hrough the pipe, which included the processing of the gas

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



and the conpression of the gas. He said that to reach the
| onest tariff for in-state Al aska use the corporation had
exam ned various pipe dianmeter sizes and the overall cost
associated with the different sizes. He stated that the 36
inch dianmeter pipe had been determ ned to have the | owest
cost for the project.

Senator Dunl eavy thought that the question over pipe size
for future capacity could cause division between interested
parties in the future. He expressed the desire to
understand weather the pipe size could be increased under
HB 4 in the future without violating AG A

Ms. Delbridge answered that rates had to be cost based
under the reqgulatory franework. She said if the pipe
dianeter was |arger than necessary for the anount of gas
bei ng shipped there could be challenges surrounding cost
recovery. She believed that the final word concerning
whet her or not that would work under the terns of AGQA
woul d be given by attorneys from DOL and AGDC.

2:49: 24 PM

Senator O son directed attention to Page 37, line 17 of the
| egislation. He noted that the Regulatory Conmm ssion of
Alaska (RCA) would play a promnent part during initial
construction, but after tine the participants would be |eft
under their own direction.

Ms. Delbridge shared that the RCA would play a prom nent
role in the wearly stages because that was when the
contracts would be nade that would govern the pipelines
relationship with its custoners. She said that at any point
at which an expansion was wanted and access to the pipeline
was sought, the RCA would be brought back in to start the
process over again. She stressed that one of the points
that had been raised was whether or not people had access;
the regulatory structure, coupled with the requirenents in
the state right-of-way |ease covenants, required mandatory
expansions on comrercially reasonable terns provided that
those do not violate AG A She stressed that there was
access to the pipeline under HB 4; open seasons would be
conducted fairly and capacity would be awarded on a non-
discrimnatory basis. She contended that nothing in the
regul atory framework of the bill changed the way that the
RCA currently regulated public utilities or commobn carrier
oil pipelines. She relayed the regulatory framework should

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



address that the state had never had a major natural gas
transportation pipeline. She said that the framework in the
bill was closely nodeled on the Federal Energy Regul atory
Comm ssion (FERC) process for regulating contract carrier
gas pipelines in the Lower 48. She noted that terns used in
previous testinmony were special ternms FERC had for one
pi peline, an overland pipeline from Alaska to the Lower 48,
and in part were added because the Lower 48 project had
sparked national interest. She agreed that there was no way
that there would ever be two Lower 48 natural gas pipelines
built from Al aska. She noted that there was a conpetitive
market in the Lower 48, which was why the sponsors of the
| egislation nmade sure to require an open season for any
Al aska natural gas pipeline project. She said that the
| anguage woul d ensure that there was access to everyone at
an RCA approved initial recourse rate. She furthered that
the upfront approval of the initial recourse rate, coupled

with the open season procedures, included the sane
requi renents as the FERC open season procedures for a Lower
48 Al aska gas pipeline. She listed the open season

procedures: open season procedures had to be noticed up
front in the initial recourse tariff, reasonable notice of
the open season nust be given, initial approved recourse
tariff nust be listed and final precedent and firm service
agreenments nust be shared. She continued that conpani es had
to define the route, capacity, operating pressures, in-
service date, and quality specifications for the gas and
how capacity would be awarded. She stressed that all the
procedures woul d have to be non-discrimnatory.

2:54: 19 PM

Ms. Del bridge cautioned against conparing the project to
TAPS. She stated that TAPS was an oil pipeline and a conmobn
carrier with multiple tariffs on the one pipeline. She
furthered that TAPS was jointly regulated by a state body
and a federal body, and that the concept of rate based
tariffs had been conplicated by state settlenments. She
shared that under HB 4 the gas pipeline would be governed
by firm contracts. She said that there were no settlenent
nmet hodol ogies or rate cases that extended out for years.
She spoke to the concern that the three large oil conpanies
on the North Slope would increase the tariffs in order to
reduce the well head value of the gas for purposes of
production tax calculations. She pointed out that the
| egi sl ation expressly prohibited a tariff increase on Page
50, line 30 through Page 51, line 1. She noted under HB 4

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



tariffs would have to be RCA approved, cost based tariffs.
She said the tariffs nust have a reasonable rate of return

reasonabl e capital structure and a reasonabl e depreciation
nmet hod. She added that tariffs could be negotiated but if
contracts | ooked suspi ci ous, particul arly bet ween
affiliated parties, the RCA would scrutinize them nore
cl osel y.

2:56: 25 PM

Senator O son restated his question concerning the |evel of
RCA oversi ght .

Ms. Delbridge specified that wunder the legislation the
contracts approved by the RCA would govern the business of
gas noving through the pipeline. She reiterated that if
soneone wanted to pay to expand the line that the RCA could
order the expansion.

2:57: 34 PM

Senator O son expressed concern that current producers on
the North Slope could control the gas and the corridor down
to tidewater. He felt that so much control could lead to a
nmonopol i zati on of the price of gas.

Ms. Del bridge did not believe that a nonopoly scenario was
pl ausi bl e under the regulatory franework of the bill.

2:59: 44 PM

Senator Hoffman understood that RCA <could order the
expansion, should it be requested. He wondered if the
expansion could be ordered wthout regard to the
l[imtations of AG A

Ms. Delbridge replied no, an RCA expansion would not
viol ate AQ A

3:00: 18 PM

Senator A son surmsed that there would be public noney
going into the project which would include acquired assets;
the assets could be from a corporation such as AGC or the
physi cal assets attached to the project. He wondered who
would own those assets 5 to 10 years after conpletion of
t he pi peline.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



Ms. Delbridge replied the HB 4 was structured so that
assets owned by AGDC would be managed by the corporation,
including sale or transfer. She said it would be up to AGDC
to nmanage the assets in a way that hel ped them neet their
m ssion of getting gas to Alaskans at the |owest possible
rate.

3:03: 06 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough wondered about rolled-in rates and
t he FERC exenpti on

Ms. Del bridge replied that with rolled-in rates the cost of
expansi ons would be shouldered by the shippers. She said
that with increnental rates, the person using the space
woul d pay for the expansion of the space. She stated that
with new capacity whoever was creating the need for the
expansion would be responsible for the costs. She related
that the rolled-in rates were inportant to people under
AG A She relayed that industry had testified that the
financial burden related to the initial cost of the
pi peline would nake them unable to sign on to a project
requiring rolled-in rates. She stated that the reason for
that was because upon signing a contract for a specific
anount of space in a pipeline, over a period of twenty or
thirty years at a given rate, the expectation was that the
contractual rate would be used in calculating paynent. She
stressed that the nature of contractual commtnments on a
natural gas pipeline prohibited the rolled-in rate concept.
She remnded the commttee that previous testinony had
suggested that FERC required rolled-in rates on a Lower 48
pipeline. She clarified that FERC had stated that it would
make a rebuttable presunption concerning rolled-in rates,
whi ch could be challenged in the future. She asserted that
the sponsors of the bill felt that the users should pay;
those that would be creating the cost of expansion should
be held financially responsible.

3:06: 35 PM

Senator Bishop understood that under HB 4, a new entrant
could get the gas in under the recourse rate plus the cost
of expansi on.

Ms. Delbridge asked if the conversation could continue

under the assunption that conpliance under AG A was not an
i ssue.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



Senat or Bi shop agreed.

Ms. Delbridge related that under HB 4 an initial recourse
rate would need to be set before going into an open season
for expansion. She reiterated that the user of the space
woul d pay for the space.

3:07:29 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough inquired if the recourse rate was
different if there was existing capacity in the pipeline.
She asked if only the 250 million cubic feet were noving
t hrough the pipeline, and a pipeline were to proceed, would
the recourse rate have an expansion in it or would there be
two rates.

Ms. Del bridge clarified that if only 250 mllion cubic feet
subscribed in an open season AGC would need to reengi neer
the project. She said that if the volune decreased the
rates would double; however, reengineering the project
could save the doubling of costs. She furthered that if
there was avail able capacity; if 10 percent of the |line was
not subscribed, but that the subscriptions were enough to
finance the project, space would be available. She added
that the carrier would be required to tell others that the
space was avail able. She shared that if an entity wanted in
on the extra space they would need to be sure that the
recourse tariff was updated and hold and open season.

3:09: 20 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough understood that the tariff and the
expansion rate of one large pipeline would cost Al aska nore
than a smaller |ine.

Ms. Delbridge felt that the senator was on the right track

She clarified that the initial recourse tariff included
capital costs, as well as ongoing operation and nai ntenance
costs of the entire line, which would be spread anong the
pi peline users. She relayed that the rate for the expansion
would be nore than a functional cost of the capital
expansi on.

3:10: 23 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough inquired how the expansion would be
handl ed; would the state alert people that an expansi on was

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



pendi ng and ask whether a group wanted to be on board in
order to | ower fixed costs.

Ms. Delbridge replied that any request for an expansion
would result in another open season notification; every
time pipeline capacity was increased, anyone who wanted to
partici pate woul d have the opportunity.

3:12: 04 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough asked how the recourse rate would be
set if the pipeline were at capacity wthout the
possibility for expansion under the ternms of AGQ A

Ms. Delbridge said that the recourse tariff would not be
necessary under that scenario. She stated that the state
woul d have contracts that would govern the shippers. She
added that if there was a small bit of pipeline that the
carrier had that was not for contract, they would need to
offer a short-term interruptible service, and then the
state would need an updated recourse tariff that reflected
actual costs.

3:12:43 PM

Senat or Bi shop believed that AGDC would need to reengineer
the line after an open season in order to reach the goal of
bringing gas to Alaskan's at the nost affordable rate.

Ms. Del bridge agreed. She said that AGDC would need to
reengi neer and assess whether the new estimates for a 250
mllion cubic foot line had tariffs that were conpetitive
for Al askans.

3:14: 20 PM

Senator O son noted that there was no |language in the title
that stated that the line was to bring gas to Al askan's at
the "nost affordable rate.”" He asked if the pipeline were
to be contracted at the naxi num capacity under the permt,
a half a mllion cubic feet per day, would that limt other
conpanies fromputting gas in the |ine.

Ms. Del bridge responded that it would depend on whether or

not the size was constrained by AG A She added that wth
AG A in place the line could not exceed a half a mllion

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



cubic feet per day. She said that AGDC had the power for
expansi on once AG A was not "in the way."

3:15:19 PM

Senator O son understood that under AG A a second open
season could not be held to put nore gas in the line.

Ms. Delbridge replied in the affirmative.

3:15: 28 PM

Senator A son surnmsed that Shell coming on with nore gas
of f the Chuckchi or Beauford Seas would not be able to put
it in the line.

Ms. Del bridge responded that it would depend whether or not
Ad A was still in effect.

3:15: 40 PM

Senator O son thought that Shell would have gas |ong before
the AQ A sunset date.

3:16: 15 PM

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough thought a further discussion on FERC
could be helpful, as well as further discussion of export
vol unes.

Ms. Delbridge said that FERC regulatory jurisdiction had
not been addressed. She pointed out that on Page 36, |ines
24 through 28 of the bill, the |anguage clearly stated that
if there was an in-state natural gas pipeline that was
subj ect exclusively to federal jurisdiction, the chapter
did not apply. She furthered that the state could not tel

FERC to regulate the 1line. She said that FERC had
jurisdiction in sonme cases and not in others and FERC woul d
make the decision on jurisdiction in cases where there
could be discression involved. She stated that generally,
if there was an in-state natural gas pipeline with no
export then there was no FERC jurisdiction. If there was an
in-state pipeline with an export conponent, FERC nay have
jurisdiction under certain scenarios. She furthered that it
could depend on where the gas was being shipped. She
stressed that FERC would not share jurisdiction but would

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



regulate the entire line including the in-state volunes if
t hey decided to regul ate the pipeline.

3:19: 00 PM

M. Richards added that FERC would be required to assert
jurisdiction for the LNG facility. He stated that the
current AGDC pipeline could conceptually deliver gas from
the North Slope into the Beluga pipeline at mle 29. He
concluded that there was not a LNG conponent associ ated
specifically with the AGDC project.

3:19:46 PM

Senat or Bishop asked if there was l|language in the bill to
assure that an in-state rate could be negotiated early so
that it was not elevated with the LNG export rate once it
left tidewater.

Ms. Del bridge responded that there was nothing about AGDC
that would address the commodity price of the gas. The
corporation was a pipeline shipper, focused strictly on
shi pmrent of the gas. She explained that people selling gas
to in-state custonmers would negotiate a price for sale of
the gas, and people selling gas to a foreign market would
negotiate the price of that particular gas.

3:20: 51 PM

Senator O son wondered if there were any |egal questions
surrounding the issue of state ownership and regul ation of
t he gasline.

Ms. Delbridge replied that there were no |egal questions
that had been brought to the sponsor's attention. She said
that the RCA was part of state governnment and a quasi-
judicial body and AGDC was a stand-alone, independent
corporation of the state.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough solicited closing coments.

3:22:38 PM

JOE DUBLER, VICE PRESIDENT AND CHI EF FINANCI AL OFFI CER,
ALASKA GASLI NE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND DI RECTOR OF
FI NANCE, ALASKA HOUSI NG FI NANCE CORPCRATI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE (via teleconference), explained the three proposed

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



changes in the current legislation. He relayed that the
first change could be found in Section 3, page 9 of the
| egislation and would allow for AGDC to hedge materi al
prices for building the line in an effort to curb price
inflation. He noted that the change had been vetted by both
DOR and DQL.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough queried when the capital expenditure
costs would be presented to the legislature, or was it
i nside the existing appropriation request.

M. Dubler responded that that the funds were not included
in the appropriation request. He said that the funds would
cone from bond proceeds or equity contributions from owners
and co-owners of the project.

3:25:31 PM

Ms. Delbridge interjected that the costs would be part of
the project costs and would not require an additional
appropriation fromthe state.

3:25:35 PM

M. Richards furthered that the tinme to order the steel
would be after the decision to proceed wth project
sancti on.

Vi ce-Chair Fairclough understood that would nean an open
season had been held and contracts had been secured that
woul d be bondabl e assets to acquire capital in the market.
M. Richards replied yes.

3:26: 04 PM

M. Richards referred to FN3, which had acconpanied the
bill from the other body, and had been changed from $330
mllion to $250 million. He explained that the |evel of
effort to get to the project sanction was $330 million.

3:26: 54 PM

Senator Meyer remarked that the pipe size of the project
was limted by AGA He assuned that to get out of the AG A
contract would result in treble damages, which would be
cost prohibitive.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



M. Richards deferred to the DOL or the attorney for AGDC.
He added that A A was the "law of the |and" that governed
t he corporation.

3:27:19 PM

Co- Chair Meyer understood that there was a way out of the
AG A agreenent but that it was expensive.

M. Richards relayed that there was nore than one way to
get out fromunder the ternms of AGQ A

3:27:37 PM

Vice-Chair Fairclough felt that the project should nove
forward under AG A. She believed that the goal should be to
get enough gas to build a larger pipeline based on the
contract carriage proposed in HB 4. She thought that the
framework would allow the state to nove enough gas to
attract investors. She stressed that supporters of the
| egislation were not trying to circunvent the AG A project,
but believed both were on the table for Al aska's advant age.

Ms. Del bridge agreed.

M. Dubler continued to discuss the proposed changes. He
directed commttee attention to Page 9. He said that the
change would strike all of the |anguage on line 15, after
"obligations" and continue through "avail able" on Page 16.
He said that the renmoval would allow the corporation to
borrow construction funds for nore than one year.

3:30: 30 PM

M. Dubler continued to Page 23, line 7. He relayed the
word "pending" through to the end of the paragraph would be
removed. He remarked that the current |anguage restricted
the type of investnent that the corporation would be
allowed to make in a refunding transaction.

3:32:25 PM

M. Richards referred to FN3, dated April 1, 2013. The note
identified an FY14 appropriation for $225 million.

3:32:51 PM
AT EASE

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



3:34:22 PM
RECONVENED

M. Richards continued to discuss FN3. He said that the
appropriation would capitalize the in-state natural gas
fund with $225 mllion Al aska Housing Capital Corporation
receipts, including the governor's $25 mllion capital
request for Alaska Housing Capital Corporation receipts. He
spoke to the need for full funding of the project. He said
that the corporation had identified in the 2011 and 2012
project plans the ambunt of funds that would be necessary
in order to drive the project through an open season and on
to project sanction. He stressed that the need for full
funding through the open season to get to the |evel of
det ai | necessary, which would take design engineers,
process engi neers, environmental and regul atory people, and
others. He said that the assenbled team would be the people
wor ki ng for the next year and a half to get the state to an
open season. He stressed the inportance of working through
the process of a post open season when AGDC would be
getting ideas or requirenents from the shippers and the
buyers of the gas concerning any nodifications to the
project. He stated that the key would be to retain the
consulting staff in order to push the project through
wi t hout | osing nonentum during the post open season hiatus.
He said that the work that would be going on after the open
season would be a continuation of regulatory work. He
shared that the pipeline Hazardous WMaterials and Safety
Admi nistration, which was a division of the federa
Department of Transportation, would require AGDC to have a
testing program for pipe sanples and full pipe segnents.

3:39: 55 PM

Senator Bishop queried the whether the pipeline would be
strain-base tested.

M. R chards replied that the pipeline had a safety
adm nistration through the U 'S DOl which had made the
determ nation that a natural gas pipeline in Al aska would
be strain-based design

M. Richards stated that in addition to the Hazardous
Materials and Safety Admnistration, AGXC would have to
work with the Departnent of Honeland Security and the
Transportation Security Admnistration on the security
aspects of the project.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



3:40: 37 PM

M. R chards reiterated the inportance that the project
received full funding.

3:41: 31 PM

Senator Hoffman stated that he was trying to reconcile FN3
with a report that the conmttee has received in January
2013 titled, "ASAP Project Plan Update Year-End 2012"(copy
on file). He cited Page 5, figure 1.3, which listed the
AGDC recomrendation status as of July 2011:

"The State of Al aska should appropriate $210 mllion*
to conplete the next phase of +the project design
devel opment , recogni zing that approxi mately  $130
mllion nore will be required either through capital
funding or financing to conplete the design before
proj ect approval (sanction).

“Assumed approval of $29 million appropriation by 27th
Al aska Legi sl ature.™

Senator Hoffrman wondered how the update from January
conpared to the current fiscal note and to M. Richards
t esti nony.

M. Richards responded that Page 5 of the report listed the
July 2011 recommendations for the project plan.

Senator Hoffrman pointed out the report containing the
recommendati on was dated January 2013.

M. Richards explained that the purpose of the section had
been to identify the prior recommendations that had cone
out of the original project plan in July 2011, and conpare
themto what had happened, or not, subsequent to that.

Senator Hoffman interjected that the report reflected that
in Decenber 2012 the funds had not been appropriated, and
as a result, AGDC had not been able to pursue the detail ed
engineering required to refine project costs estimtes and
hold an open season. He assuned that the July nunbers were
the same as the nunbers in Decenber 2012. He asked how the
nunbers related to FN3, what was needed, and the difference
bet ween the $25 and $29 million.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



M. Richards replied that from July of 2011 to April 2013,
project advancenment had resulted in a request for nore
noney.

Senator Hof fman i nquired what had happened between Decenber
2012 and January 2013 that altered the nunbers. He noted
that the footnote had not changed from July 2011 to
Decenber 2013 and wondered what had changed from Decenber
2012 to April 2013 that altered the request.

M. Richards replied that in that section of the report
AGDC had been trying to identify what had been originally
proposed and where they stood now that no funds had been
appropriated to push through with the detail ed engi neering.

3:44: 59 PM

Senat or Hoffrman wunderstood that in July 2011 AGDC was
asking for $29 nillion, which was then reduced by $4
mllion, and now AGC was asking that additional noney be
appropriated so that the corporation did not have to cone
back before the |egislature.

M. Richards replied that Page 7 of the report identified
the stage-gate process that had been presented to the
| egislature. He pointed out the graph on Page 7 nmaking
reference to the left hand portion identified as, "FEL
(front end | oaded) Phase 1"; this first phase was expected
to cost $30 mllion. He furthered that FEL Phase 2 was
expected to cost $240 nillion and FEL Phase 3, $130
mllion. He reiterated that $72 mllion in appropriations
had been received for the project through the end of 2013,
but in order to push forward through to phase 3, the
additional $330 million was necessary. He stressed that the
plan was one of efficiency and the |owest possible cost to
Al askans.

3:46: 39 PM

Senat or Bi shop turned committee attention back to Page 5 of
the report. He requested clarification on whether the
federal right-of-way was |acking by 90 m|es.

M. Richards responded that the federal right-of-way wth

The Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM was approxi mately 100
mles.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



Senat or Bishop asked if the state was still waiting on the
right - of - way.

M. R chards answered that the decision of the BLM was
pendi ng and was expected any day.

3:47:32 PM

Ms. Del bridge remarked that the sponsors were in support of
full funding for AGDC because it would nake the state | ook
like they could follow through with the same fiduciary
coommitments to the project that would be asked of the
private sector.

3:49:48 PM
RECESSED

4:53:22 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Meyer continued the discussion surrounding the
fiscal notes.

4:54:10 PM

M. Richards stated that there were two notes accomnpanyi ng
the bill. The first note was FN2, dated April 1, 2013.

4:55:10 PM
AT EASE

4:56:25 PM
RECONVENED

M. Richards continued to discuss the fiscal notes. He
stated that FN2 identified the costs for AGDC and other
agenci es involved. The figures represented the cost of the
total project through an open season. He stated that the
funding for FY14 through FY19 would support staffing and
the regulatory process for AGDC. He noted that the
attachment to the note detailed how the funds would be
spent by each agency each fiscal year.

4:59:13 PM

M. R chards |ooked at FN3, which highlighted the $225
mllion that would be used to capitalize the pipeline fund

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



and would allow AGDC to advance the project through to an
open season. He said that the net of the two fiscal notes
was approximately $250 mllion.

4:59:51 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the fund source for FN3 woul d be
t he Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC)

M. R chards replied that the fund source was from the
Al aska Housi ng Capital Corporation receipts.

5:01: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, thanked the conmttee for
hearing the legislation. He stressed the inportance the
process of the project not be disrupted. He warned that any
di sruption would further increase risk, delay, project costs
and uncertainty. He believed that full funding would protect
agai nst such disruptions. He testified that the state's
nmoney was well protected by the governance provisions that
had been incorporated into HB 4. He believed that the
| egislation contained strong governance provisions that
woul d protect Al askans while putting forth a project that
was appropriate and in the best interest of the state.

5:04: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, felt that by fully funding the
project the legislature would give AGC the opportunity to
conpl ete the project successfully through to an open season.
He expressed concern that not fully funding the project now
woul d result requests to the legislature in the future. He
felt enough tine had been spent devel oping the project and
urged the commttee to support the project wth ful

f undi ng.

5:07:10 PM

Co- Chair Meyer solicited further commttee discussion.

5:08: 03 PM

Vi ce- Chair Fairclough relayed that many people who
testified earlier in the week had expressed concern that
noving HB 4 forward would nean the elimnation of the
possibility of a large pipeline.

Representative Chenault did not believe that the bill would
stop any project from noving forward. He said that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



governor was intent on the AGQ A process. He though that the
project in HB 4 could norph into a bigger project, which he
believed was what all Al askans wanted. He said that the
state would not be able to decide how big the pipe would be
unl ess they had the noney to pay for the entire project. He
reiterated that the |egislation proposed that the buyers
and sellers put together the contracts in order to pay for
the project and nove it forward.

5:12:13 PM

Representative Hawker echoed Representative Chenault's
comments. He stressed that there was nothing in HB 4 that
would elimnate or conpromse the possibility of a large
capacity pipeline. He thought that the legislation had been
m sinterpreted by the opposition. He stressed that HB 4 was
built around the base-case pipeline project design that was
l[imted under A A He added that in the |arger sense HB 4
woul d provide the state the tools necessary to participate
in a larger pipeline project should it become a reality. He
noted that the only other pipeline project that he believed
viable to nove forward was the AG A project, and he
enphasi zed that HB 4 and AGQ A could work in tandem He
concluded that it was tinme a gasline was built. He believed
that once the state took the steps to build a line the
design would fall into place and be successful due to the
di ligence, vision and entrepreneurship of Al askans to create
economcally viable plans for distribution from region to
regi on.

CS HB 4(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb13
SENATE BI LL NO 13

"An Act relating to bonds of the Knik Arm Bridge and
Toll Authority; relating to reserve funds of the
authority; relating to taxes and assessnents on a
person that is a party to an agreenment wth the
authority; and establishing the Knik Arm Crossing
fund."

SB 13 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
5:17:11 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 5:17 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 24 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 25 04/ 10/ 13 3:54 P. M



